PALMER TOWNSHIP BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
GENERAL BUSINESS MEETING
JULY 27, 2010

A general business meeting of the Palmer Township Board of Supervisors was held on
Tuesday, July 27, 2010 at 7:00 p.m. in the Community Room of the Palmer Library with all
Supervisors in attendance: David Colver, Robert Lammi, Michael Mitchell, Ann-Marie Panella
and Robert Smith. Also in attendance were the Township Manager, Planning Director, Public
Services Director, Police Chief, Township Engineer and the Township Solicitor. Gina Varamo
from the Express-Times represented the news media. Chairman Colver convened the meeting
and led those present in the Pledge to the Flag.

2. APPROVAL OF DISBURSEMENT OF FUNDS JULY 6, JULY 12, AND JULY 27,
2010

INFORMATION

The report will be provided at the meeting.
DISCUSSION

On motion by Mitchell, seconded by Smith, and agreed by all, the Board approved the
disbursement of funds for July 6, 2010.

On motion by Panella, seconded by Smith, and agreed by all, the Board approved the
disbursement of funds for July 12, 2010.

On motion by Panella, seconded by Smith, and agreed by all, the Board approved the
disbursement of funds for July 27, 2010.

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES — JUNE 29, 2010

DISCUSSION

Bruno noted on page five of the minutes, “lion’s share” was spelled incorrectly.

On motion by Lammi, seconded by Smith, and agreed by four, the Board approved the
minutes of June 29, 2010 with the above change. Panella abstained since she was absent at the

meeting.

4. BOND APPROVAL / REJECTION DISCUSSION

INFORMATION

The Board needs to approve/disapprove refinancing township bonds for the completion
of township capital projects.

DISCUSSION



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS PAGE 2 JULY 27,2010

Gary Pulcini introduced Attorney Michael Gaul from King, Spry, Herman, Freund &
Faul, LLC and Valerie Pulcini from Valco Capital. Pulcini distributed a packet of information to
the Board and reviewed the repayment schedule of the bonds.

Colver said when you proposed this to us you estimated the cost of $85,000. Colver said
it is $6,000 less than what we were figuring. Colver said the final payoff goes out to 2026.
Pulcini said yes. Colver asked what the net deposit amount will be into our bond account.
Pulcini said $2 million.

Attorney Mike Gaul reviewed the ordinance with the Board that authorizes the issuance
of the bonds.

5. ORDINANCE FOR BOND FINANCING

INFORMATION

The Board needs to approve/disapprove the ordinance setting forth the township’s
intention to issue a series of General Obligation Bonds.

DISCUSSION

On motion by Lammi, seconded by Smith, and agreed by all, the Board approved the
bond series ordinance of 2010.

6. RAPPA MINOR SUBDIVISION

INFORMATION

The Board needs to approve/disapprove the subdivision plan.
DISCUSSION

Carman said this is a 3.88+ acre lot where they are proposing subdividing into two lots.
One lot will be .98+ acres and the other 2.83+ acres. Carman noted the applicant also has a
zoning hearing scheduled for August where they are requesting a stone driveway. Larry Rappa,
2400 Northwood Avenue was in attendance. Rappa said we are here tonight looking for this
Board’s approval. Rappa said Met Ed recommends we have a stone driveway rather than
macadam because they run large trucks on that roadway regularly. Colver asked if they intend to
macadam a small area off of Northwood Avenue so stones don’t run onto that road. Rappa said
they would if it is required. Dillman said Penndot may require them to macadam a certain
portion since their road meets Northwood Avenue.

Smith made a motion to approve the minor subdivision with the following conditions:
the applicant address the comments of the township engineer letter dated May 7, 2010 to the
satisfaction of the township engineer; the applicant satisfy the township departmental comments
dated May 10, 2010; the applicant pay the township a recreation fee of $1,400; enter into a
subdivision agreement to the satisfaction of the township solicitor; the applicant pave driveway
area in right-of-way, approximately 20 feet, unless Penndot requires more; the Board approved
the following deferrals: 165-59.C(2) — widening of Northwood Avenue, 165-69 — installation of



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS PAGE 3 JULY 27,2010

sidewalks and driveway aprons, 165-75 — installation of curbs. The motion was seconded by
Lammi, and agreed by all.

7. NORTHWOOD CENTER WAIVER REQUEST

INFORMATION

The Board needs to approve/disapprove the sidewalk location.
DISCUSSION

Carman said this is in regards to the Northwood Center development. Carman said they
were granted a deferral in their prior approval for sidewalks. Penndot wants them to put the
sidewalk in on Route 248. The ordinance states the sidewalk should be located within the street
right-of-way unless otherwise approved by the Board of Supervisors. Carman said because of
the swale they can’t locate the sidewalk in the right-of-way. Carman said they are willing to
provide an easement for the sidewalk.

On motion by Smith, seconded by Lammi, and agreed by all, the Board approved the
location of sidewalk on Route 248 subject to developer submitting an easement agreement

satisfactory to township solicitor and engineer.

8. HIGHLANDS OF GLENMOOR RELEASE OF SECURITY REQUEST

INFORMATION

The Board needs to approve/disapprove the security release.
DISCUSSION

Nathan Jameson, from Traditions of America was in attendance representing the
developer. Jameson said prior to our last meeting at the end of June the developer had performed
the items on the Pidcock punch list. The township engineer recommended holding $25,000 to
ensure the seeding was stabilized. At that time the Board held $50,000 after the association’s
engineer, Drew Disessa, expressed some concerns. Jameson said he walked with the
association’s engineer during a rain storm to insure things are working. At this time the
developer has done all the work on the punch list and we are requesting a full release of the
maintenance security. Colver confirmed with the township engineer that the majority of the
punch list was completed prior to our last meeting on June 26. Dillman said that is correct.
Dillman said there were a few things on Mr. Disessa’s list that were not on our list. Dillman said
we are looking for three things, if it is a permanent structure that it has structural integrity, that
the ground is stable and that the storm water system functions. We are not looking at the
aesthetics. Our concerns are about the functionality and stability of the ground. Lammi asked if
there were improvements over the last several days to stabilize the ground. Dillman said the area
was stable prior to our last meeting in June. The developer has now gone out there and tried to
make some improvements. Dillman said we listed our opinions to all the items in our May 5
letter and we recommend the township holds $10,000 to insure the sod and seed takes hold and it
functions properly. Dillman said he would recommend it be held until the end of September for



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS PAGE 4 JULY 27,2010

the next growing season. Bruno said the letter of credit is now at $50,000 and will expire at the
end of July.

Ron Giglio, 120 Moore Drive, President of the Association, said he respectfully disagrees
on how much of the work is actually done. Giglio said there are some areas where no work has
been done. Giglio said he received the township engineer’s updated letter today at 3:30 p.m. and
he did not have an opportunity to get it reviewed with his engineer. Giglio said regarding
detention basin #1, the township engineer mentioned that the basin works but it wasn’t built to
plan. Giglio distributed a picture to the board of the detention basin. Lammi said this is what it
is supposed to look like. Giglio said most of the water goes around it. Giglio said we still have a
problem with this basin and a new trench is already starting to develop. All they did since the
last meeting was put in jute mat. Giglio said another item is located by lot 118 to 120 where they
were to re-establish the berm behind the lots. Nothing has been done. They threw a little topsoil
and seed down but that won’t solve the water problem. Giglio said we still have about 50
diseased trees. Panella asked if they had documentation of the diseased trees. Giglio said he
provided that documentation to Ms. Carman. Giglio said nothing has been done on the
landscaping. Giglio asked why you would hold $50,000 last month and now reduce it to
$10,000. Giglio said item #3 on Mr. Disessa’s report talks about the water that runs over
Corriere Road which he believes is a DEP violation. Giglio said all they needed to do was
extend the berm in this area. There are two depressions in this area where there is no berm.
Giglio said his request is that a minimum of $25,000 be held and we would like the township to
give direction for Traditions of America (TOA) to finish the job they were supposed to do. If
you don’t protect us — we have no protection left. We need your help. We are the tax paying
residents.

Lammi asked the township engineer about the berm on Corriere Road. Dillman said they
installed a level spreader. Dillman said some ice formed on the sidewalk on Corriere Road last
winter. The level spreader is to take that flow and allow the water to rise and go over the
sidewalk. Dillman said he doesn’t understand why DEP would have a concern about it. It’s not
an unusual situation. Dillman said he doesn’t see where Mr. Giglio feels the berm should be
extended. Dillman said Lehigh Engineering did the design of this plan, we review it, and they
built it. Panella said it doesn’t make sense that there would be a berm, then no berm, and then
the berm starts again. Giglio said he didn’t mean to imply that the water crosses Corriere. The
water crosses the sidewalk on Corriere. It is an area of six to ten feet wide. If it happens in the
winter months it will be pure ice. Since we are responsible for that sidewalk, we become
responsible for the safety of the people using that sidewalk. Giglio said if there was a berm there
the water would just drain into the ground and avoid the sidewalk. Jameson said he believes that
the Lehigh Engineering plan is now in place there and it was approved by Pidcock. Dillman said
that is correct.

Richard Milberg, 36 Edinburgh, said it is now back to the level that was there before.
Milberg asked for clarification on the level spreader. Dillman explained the purpose of the level
spreader.

Colver said this Board has professionals working for us and many would say we have the
best engineering firm in the Lehigh Valley. They have supplied us with a list on every item and
everything is done to the standards required by this township. The grass will grow. Colver said
he suggests we hold the $10,000 and be done with this. Everyone has been chewing up time and
money on this matter. Smith said the thousands of homes built in Palmer Township have been



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS PAGE § JULY 27,2010

inspected by Pidcock. This is the first time we’ve ever had this. Smith said if it has been built
according to plan - that is what matters. All our other storm sewers in the township are working
properly but you’re assuming yours isn’t working. These items have been inspected over and
over again. Giglio said last month we were told by Mr. Dillman that everything was done. Our
engineer came up with a report that identified many areas that were not done, yet you were under
the impression it was completed before the meeting. Smith said I asked your engineer last month
if the storm water system functions and he said yes. Smith said there is no safety issue here.

Dave Monahan, 12 Glasgow Lane, said he understands the Boards frustration. Monahan
gave the Board a plan and reviewed the detention basin. Monahan said the water moves but not
according to the plan. Dillman said the developer’s maintenance period and funds are for a
performance period. The work has to be done and stable. If this is an ongoing problem area it
will have to be addressed. Colver said the photos and videos I've seen, the basin is functioning
as expected to function. Colver said if there is erosion over the next 30 to 60 days — the $10,000
will cover that. Giglio said the jute mat did wash away and they installed new mat. Colver said
but the new mat that was put in survived the large storm we had on Sunday. Milberg asked if
water can run around the rip rap. Dillman said yes. Monahan said according to his calculations
the rip rap should be around 43 feet and it is about 33 feet. It’s all missing on the right side.

Jameson said the developer will add more rip rap at basin #1. Jameson said we have tried
to protect the areas that have been seeded with stakes and wraps so the landscaper doesn’t disturb
it.

Giglio said he still doesn’t agree with the tree inspection the town did which consisted of
driving through the development. We would like TOA to replace the diseased trees. Carman
said if a tree is dead at inspection time it is required to be replaced. Giglio said on April 23 we
agreed to suspend the inspection. Carman said we looked at the trees on the walk through and
identified the dead trees. Carman said there were a few trees in April that didn’t have leaves on
them and we agreed I would come back later to make sure they bloomed. Anckaitis asked how
we know when a tree becomes diseased. Jameson said the residents have had sole responsibility
to hire landscape contractors and snow removal contractors for three years now. Jameson said so
if a tree becomes diseased who is responsible. Jameson said the tree matter is one I don’t believe
we can be held responsible for. Mitchell asked when a homeowner’s association takes over the
property do they need to sign off to accept the property from the developer. Jameson said the
Pennsylvania condominium law states once 75% of the units are settled the association takes
over. Stefan Richter, attorney for the association, said there is no formal process when the
association accepts the property. There is the maintenance period that covers things like trees.
An arborist said the trees were damaged upon arrival. Giglio said we hired an engineering firm
that tested everything in the development and we provided it to the planning director back in
2008. Richter said these are large money issues. Smith said our engineer is saying this work is
acceptable.

Panella made a motion to authorize a demand on the letter of credit, subject to the
demand being rescinded, if the developer provides the township with an extension to their letter
of credit until September 30, 2010 and securing $10,000 to cover the items in the township
engineer letter dated July 27, 2010, the developer add additional rip rap in basin #1 area, monitor
and insure that the level spreader functions in the berm area on Corriere Road in two areas, and
that the grass germination takes place. Motion was seconded by Mitchell, and agreed by all.



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS PAGE 6 JULY 27,2010

9. GLENMOOR ESTATES RELEASE OF SECURITY REQUEST

INFORMATION

The Board needs to approve/disapprove the security release.
DISCUSSION

Bruno said there is an August 14 expiration date of the letter of credit for Glenmoor
Estates. Bruno said the developer is asking to release all of the money. Nathan Jameson, from
Traditions of America said this project was completed three years prior to the last project we
were discussing. Jameson said the last developer chose to not enter into the maintenance period
due to the paving required on Corriere Road. At the time the developer could have paved
Corriere Road in June 2006 and entered into their maintenance period. The township at that time
asked to hold off on paving Corriere Road due to the heavy construction traffic travelling
Corriere Road as the Highlands were being built. The developer complied and ended up paying
much more to pave the road than it would have cost in 2006. Jameson distributed a packet of
information to the Board and reviewed the information. Jameson said many of these
improvements were completed in 2003 and 2004. Jameson said resident control was gained in
May 2005 and the responsibilities were then turned over to the association. In December 2005
when we settled the last few units in the development we completed the improvements in the
development with the exception of paving Corriere Road. Jameson said we went into
maintenance in January 2009 — 30 months later than it should have occurred. Jameson said all of
that time we had no authority or responsibility to maintain the improvements. Jameson said we
have addressed all items in the Pidcock May 4 letter. Jameson said the developer has completed
all items except concrete and landscaping issues. Jameson pointed out that there was damage to
the concrete due to the snow removal contractor dumping large amounts of salt and plow
scraping.

Dillman said they issued a letter on July 12 outlining items and recommended the
maintenance amount be set at $56,700. Dillman said the concrete work is the largest share of the
money. Mitchell asked if the concrete damage is from salt. Dillman said it most likely could be
from salt damage.

Colver said 18-months ago when you did the inspection did the sidewalk look this
damaged. Dillman said no. Jameson said the dedication punch list served as a super
maintenance punch list because it occurred 30 months late. We identified all the items as if it
would have been the end of a normal maintenance period.

Stefan Richter, attorney for the association, said January 5, 2009 was when the
maintenance period started. I don’t care what the reason was for the delay. If they are on the list
we expect them to be done. Proper concrete will sustain proper salt application. Richter said he
would maintain that the concrete was poured at different times, different times of day, by
different contractors and that is why it is poor quality.

Art Schlessinger, 19 Canterbury Lane, president of the association, said we’ve met with
the township and we understand our responsibility. We hope the township will hold up their
responsibility and make sure the developer has done everything on the punch list. Schlessinger
said the May 5, 2010 punch list had 32 items listed and 20 of them have not yet been done.



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS PAGE 7 JULY 27,2010

Schlessinger said there are four items that have not been touched and were not included on the
punch list. Schlessinger said as far as the snow removal landscaper, our snow removal
contractor is required to use rubber on their blades. We use the same salt TOA was using from
the beginning. Schlessinger asked why they replaced the sidewalks on Corriere Road and not the
ones inside our development. Schlessinger said it was the same with the grass repairs that were
done in the right-of-way; why was it done there and not inside the community. Schlessinger said
they also had the wall issue besides doing the work on Corriere Road and the gates were still not
installed. Schlessinger said we understand what we have to do. There are 20 issues that are still
not addressed on that list. Our engineer says the cost to complete these items is $90,000.

Colver said we are hearing a lot of this for the first time tonight and you brought up more
items than I thought were out there. Dillman said Mr. Schlessinger said there are four items on
his list that we don’t have and I’d like to see them. Colver said we are picking hairs with the
$55,000 and/or $75,000. Colver said we can’t get through all this tonight. I recommend we
extend the letter of credit until the end of September.

Bruno confirmed the Board is asking the developer to give an extension of the letter of
credit until September 30, 2010. Bruno said if they don’t give us the extension we will need to
make a demand on the letter of credit at one of our next meetings.

On motion by Lammi, seconded by Smith, and agreed by all, the Board agreed to table
the item until either the August 9 or August 24 meeting.

10. OPPOSITION TO FORCED LOCAL GOVERNMENT MERGERS AND
CONSOLIDATIONS RESOLUTION

INFORMATION

PSATS urges township supervisors to adopt a resolution opposing legislation to eliminate
townships. The Board needs to approve/disapprove the resolution.

DISCUSSION

Lammi said he supports the resolution and recommends we send a copy to Representative
Grucela, Senator Mensch and Representative Bob Freeman.

On motion by Lammi, seconded by Smith, and agreed by all, the Board approved the
resolution.

11. OFFICER PHIL PROGRAM

INFORMATION

The Board needs to approve/disapprove the Officer Phil program for 2010.
DISCUSSION

On motion by Lammi, seconded by Smith, and agreed by all, the Board approved the
Officer Phil program for 2010.



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS PAGE 8 JULY 27,2010

12. TOWNSHIP ENGINEER CAPITAL PROJECTS UPDATE

INFORMATION

The township engineer will update the Board on the status of capital projects.

DISCUSSION

Dillman said he had no updates for tonight. Colver asked if Chrin needs to finish any
work at the Greenwood Avenue project. Dillman said there is a definitive list of final items that
will be going out to Chrin later this week.

13. PUBLIC COMMENT

None

14. REPORTS

Solicitor

Bruno had a resolution to accept right-of-way for Moss Court and Mill Brook Court
for Phase 3 of the Villages at Mill Race. Bruno had three storm sewer easement
agreements for approval for the Villages at Mill Race, Phase 4. On motion by
Lammi, seconded by Panella, and agreed by all, the Board approved all right-of-way
and agreements related to the Villages at Mill Race.

On motion by Lammi, seconded by Smith, and agreed by all, the Board authorized
the chairman to sign the maintenance agreement for the Villages at Mill Race, Phase
4,

Bruno said Fox Run Estates has been inspected and approved. Bruno had resolutions
accepting right-of-way for Clover Hollow Road, Fox Hill Road, Fox Hill Road East
of Lower Way, Upper Way Road, Ridge Road and Van Buren Road. On motion by
Mitchell, seconded by Panella, and agreed by all, the Board authorized the chairman
to execute the resolutions accepting right-of-way and deeds of dedication.

Bruno had a resolution accepting the detention pond area of Fox Run Estates. On
motion by Smith, seconded by Mitchell, and agreed by all, the Board authorized the
chairman to sign the resolution.

Bruno had five storm sewer and drainage utility easement agreements for Atlantic
Van Buren Road, L.P. On motion by Mitchell, seconded by Panella, and agreed by
all, the Board authorized the chairman to sign the storm sewer drainage and easement
agreements.

Bruno said Prologis Park 33 is ready to enter into their maintenance agreement. On
motion by Smith, seconded by Panella, and agreed by all, the Board authorized the
chairman to sign the agreement.

Bruno had a resolution accepting right-of-way for Hollow Road 1 and Hollow Road
2. On motion by Mitchell, seconded by Panella, and agreed by all, the Board
authorized the chairman to sign the resolution.



